ISSN 2091-1521 (Print) 2091-153X (Online)

International Journal of Operational Research/Nepal



2020, Volume 9, Issue 1



Published by: Operational Research Society of Nepal (ORSN) Kathmandu, Nepal www.orsn.org.np

Printers: Chanser Printers, Kathmandu, Tel: 977-1-4424607



ISSN 2091-1521 (Print) 2091-153X (Online)

# International Journal of Operational Research/Nepal

IJORN

2021, Volume 9, Issue 1

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	Shree Ram Khadka & Phanindra Prasad Bhandari	
	Lexicographic Earliest Arrival Contraflow Evacuation	
	Problem on UPL-TTSP Network	1-7
2.	Gangaram Biswakarma, Achyut Gnawali & Bharat Khatri Antecedent of service innovation effectiveness in small and	
	medium enterprises: a case of hospitality sector in Nepal	9-31
3.	Santosh Kumar Ghimire	
	Attitudes and purchase intention towards eco-friendly	
	products among Nepalese youth	33-43

# **INSTRUCTIONS TO AUTHORS**

# All manuscript must be prepared in letter quality (font size 12) in double-space of A4 paper with margins of one inch on all side using the Times New Roman.

#### 1. Cover Page

Manuscript of a paper should have a cover page providing the title of the paper, the name(s), address(es), phone, fax numbers and email address(es) of all authors and acknowledgements, if any.

#### 2. General Guidelines for Papers

*Abstract:* Following the cover page, there should be an 'abstract' page, which should contain the title of the paper, the subtitle 'Abstract' and a summary of the paper in single space not exceeding 150 words and Keywords of 3 to 5 words.

*Introduction:* Briefly describe the objective of the research and explain why it is important.

*Methods:* Describe the research plan, the materials (or subjects), and the method used. Explain in detail the Data, sample and population, and the variables used.

*Results:* Present results in a clear, logical sequence. If tables are used, do not duplicate tabular data in text, but do describe important trends and points.

*Discussion:* Describe the limitations of the research plan, material (or subject), and methods, considering both the objective and the outcome of the study. When results differ from those of previous researchers, explain the discrepancy.

*Figures and Tables:* Each Figure/Table should be printed on a separate sheet, Figures and Tables are to be separately numbered, titled and attached at the end of the text serially. The position of the figure or table should be indicated in the text on a separate line with the words "Table I about here".

**References:** Indicate references by number(s) in square brackets in line with the text. The actual authors can be referred to, but the reference number(s) must always be given. Use italic font for the journals and the proceedings in which the paper has been published. Mark italic font on the title of the paper otherwise (for example, book and dissertations).

Example: "...Ahuja et al. [1]. ..... studied [2, 4]. Areibi and Yang [2] obtained .....

*List:* Number the references (numbers in square brackets) in the list in the alphabetical order of the first author.

#### **Examples (Reference to a journal publication):**

- [1] Ahuja, R.K., Magnati, T.L. and Orlin, J.B., 1993, Network flows: theory, algorithms and applications, Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey.
- [2] Areibi, S. and Yang, Z., 2004, Effective memetic algorithms for VLSI design = Genetic algorithms + Local search + Multi-level clustering, Evolutionary Computation, 12, 327-353.
- [3] Baumann, N., 2007, Evacuation by earliest arrival flows, PhD thesis, Department of Mathematics, University of Dortmund, Germany.
- [4] Borah, M., Owens, R.M. and Irwin, M.J., 1995, Transistor sizing for minimizing power consumption of CMOS circuits under delay constraint, International Symposium on Low Power Design, 167 -172.



# International Journal of Operational Research/Nepal (IJORN)

# I. Advisory Board

#### Professor Dr. Pushkar Man Bajracharya

Central Department of Management, Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *pushkarb2000@gmail.com* 

#### Dr. Elise de Rosario

Executive Director, Operations Research Society of Philippines *elise@jgdelrosario.com* 

#### **Professor Dr. Frank Werner**

Institute of Optimization, Faculty of Mathematics, Otto-von-Guericke University, Megdeburg, Germany frank.werner@ovgu.de

#### Professor Dr. Baikuntha Nath

University of Melbourne, Australia baikunth@unimelb.edu.au

#### Professor Dr. K K Lai

Management Science, City University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong mskklai@cityu.edu.hk

#### Professor Dr. Shashi Shekhar

Department of Computer Science College of Science and Engineering, University of Minnesota, USA shekhar@cs.umn.edu

#### Professor Dr. James J. Cochran

Bank of Ruston, Barnes, Thompson, & Thurman Endowed Research Professor Department of Marketing and Analysis College of Business, Louisiana Tech University Ruston, LA 71272 *jcochran@latech.edu* 

#### Professor Dr. Subhash Datta

Director CIGSD Gurgaon, Haryana, India (Gurgaon, India) subhash.datta@gmail.com

# II. Editorial Board

#### Prof. Dr. Shankar Prasad Khanal

Editor-in-Chief Central Department of Statistics, Institute of Science and Technology, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *drshankarcds@gmail.com* 

#### Professor Dr. Sunity Shrestha Hada

Central Department of Management, Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Nepal sunity.shresthahada7@gmail.com

#### Professor Dr. Tanka Nath Dhamala

Central Department of Mathematics, Institute of Science and Technology, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *dhamala@yahoo.com* 

#### **Professor Dr. Hans Kellerer**

Institute of Statistics and Operations Research, University of Graz, Austria hans.kellerer@uni-graz.at

#### Professor Dr. Yuri N. Sotskov

United Institute of Informatics Problems NAS of Belarus 6, Surganova Str. 220012 Minsk, Belarus sotskov@newman.bas-net.by; sotskov2005@hotmail.com

#### Professor Dr. Luiz Flavio Autran Monteiro Gomes

Head of Research, Ibmec/RJ, Brazil *autran@ibmecrj.br* 

#### **Professor Matthias Ehrgott**

Management Science Lanchaster University, UK m.ehrgott@lancaster.ac.uk

#### Dr. Shree Ram Khadka

Associate Editor Central Department of Mathematics, Institute of Science and Technology, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *shreeramkhadka@gmail.com* 

#### III. Managing Board

**Professor Dr. Sunity Shrestha Hada** Director Central Department of Management, Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *sunity.shresthahada7@gmail.com* 

#### Professor Pushkar Kumar Sharma

Nepal Commerce Campus, Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *pushkar-s@hotmail.com* 

#### Dr. Govinda Tamang

Central Department of Management, Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Nepal tamang\_govinda@yahoo.com

#### Mr. Krishna Nakarmi

Agricultural Development Bank, Kathmandu, Nepal nakarmikrishna@gmail.com

#### Dr. Shree Ram Khadka

Central Department of Mathematics, Institute of Science and Technology, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *shreeramkhadka@gmail.com* 

#### Mr. Raju Manandhar

Research Centre for Educational Innovation and Development (CERID), Tribhuvan University, Nepal *rajumanandhar@yahoo.com* 

# Subscription Rate:

For ORSN Members:	NRs. 2	250.00
For SAARC Countries:	US\$	10.00
Other Countries:	US\$	20.00

# Lexicographic Earliest Arrival Contraflow Evacuation Problem on UPL-TTSP Network

Shree Ram Khadka<sup>1</sup> and Phanindra Prasad Bhandari<sup>2\*</sup>

<sup>1,2</sup>Central Department of Mathematics, Tribhuvan University, Kathmandu, Nepal Email(s): <sup>1</sup>shree.khadka@cdmath.tu.edu.np; <sup>2</sup>phanindra.maths@gmail.com

#### Abstract

An evacuation plan proposes a way out for maximum utilization of an existing transportation system so that the safest tour and most efficient evacuation time of all expected evacuees could be ensured. This paper studies the auto-based earliest arrival contraflow problem modeled on network with capacitated intermediate vertices. The vertices serve as transshipment vertices as well as temporary shelters of given priority order. It also proposes an efficient solution procedure to the problem for the uniform path length two terminal series parallel (UPL-TTSP) network.

Keywords: Network contraflow, Capacitated vertices, Evacuation planning problem, Disaster management

#### 1. Introduction

Increasing number of disasters due to different kind of natural and human caused hazards have drawn attention of stakeholders for preparation of optimal evacuation plans. Evacuation planning problems can be modeled as network optimization flow problems. Since it is usually not known when disaster will actually happen, it is desirable to organize an evacuation in such a way that as many evacuees as possible are sent to the sink as early as possible. Moreover, it is not always possible to send all the evacuees into the sink due to network capacity constraint and/or time constraint, but can be held at relatively safe intermediate spots besides sending to the sink. One of the potential ways to accelerate the process of achieving this objective is to apply notion of network contraflow in evacuation model with non-conservation flow constraints.

Maximum dynamic flow (MDF) problem, introduced by Ford and Fulkerson [11, 12] is a central problem in network flow theory and in mathematical evacuation planning problem that attempts to determine maximum flow of single commodity from a single source to a

single sink over specified time horizon. The problem with arc direction reversal capability (contraflow), known as maximum dynamic contraflow (MDCF) problem, has been studied and proposed polynomial time solution algorithm in [18]. The MDCF problem with continuous time setting has been studied in [15]. Authors in [5] consider not necessarily equal transit time on anti-parallel arcs and study MDCF problem for general network for discrete as well as continuous time setting.

An extension of MDF problem is earliest arrival flow (EAF) problem. An EAF problem aims to optimize the objective of MDF problem for every time step within pre-specified time horizon. Existence of solution to earliest arrival flow problem was proved by Gale [13]. The problem has been studied in different contexts since then, see [2], [3], [14], [17], [20], [21], etc. To the best of our knowledge no polynomial time exact algorithm for earliest arrival flow problem on general network is known till now. Ruzika et al. [19] considered maximum dynamic flow problem on special class of networks known as two terminal series parallel (TTSP) network. They developed a polynomial time MDF algorithm for TTSP networks and showed that this also solves earliest arrival flow problem for these networks. Authors also pointed out that on series-parallel networks it is always possible to find an earliest arrival flow as a temporally repeated flow. However, the converse is not necessarily true. Earliest arrival contraflow (EACF) problem has been studied and proposed a polynomial time solution algorithm, based on the idea in [19], in [10] for TTSP network. Authors in [5] consider not necessarily equal transit time on antiparallel arcs to study EACF problem for this class of networks. Network flow problem with non-conservation flow constraints is studied in the context of evacuation planning problem in [9] (cf. [4], [6], [16]). By considering the multinetwork the contraflow evacuation problems with capability of holding evacuees at intermediate spots have been studied in [8]. Authors have proposed polynomial time solution algorithm for static case and pseudo-polynomial time solution algorithm for dynamic case.

This paper studies the earliest arrival contraflow problem modeled on the network that allows holding of flow units at intermediate vertices. It discusses solution procedure for the problem modeled for uniform path length two terminal series parallel (UPL-TTSP) network. The problem is formulated in Section 2. Section 3 discusses its solution procedure. Section 4 concludes the paper.

#### 2. Problem Formulation

Consider a network  $N = (V, A, u(a), \tau(a), k(v), s, d)$  with vertex set V and arc set A, both to be finite, such that n: = |V| and m: = |A|. Vertices s and d represent the source and the sink, respectively. Here,  $u: A \to \mathbb{N}_0 = \mathbb{N} \cup \{0\}$  represent the arc capacity function which bounds the number of flow units on each arc  $a \in A$  at each time step  $t \in \mathcal{T} :=$  $\{0, 1, \dots, T\}$  where T is given time horizon. Moreover, the transit time function  $\tau: A \to \mathbb{N}$ specifies the time needed by a flow unit to traverse an arc. We assume a terminal set  $S:=\{v_1, \dots, v_r\} \subset V$  with prioritized from higher to lower priority, i.e.,  $d = v_1 \ge \dots \ge$  $v_r$ , to be given. Similarly, the vertex capacity function  $k: S \to \{0, \infty\}$  delimits the total number of flow units, which may be held in each of the vertices  $v_i \in S$ . The nonnegative variables f(a, t) defined by  $f: A \times \mathcal{T} \to \mathbb{N}_0$  is the number of flow units entering arc *a* at time step *t* that specify the flow over time in the network *N*. This flow unit should be bounded by the capacity of arc, i.e., f(a, t) satisfies the capacity constraints for all  $a \in A$  and for all  $t \in \mathcal{T}$ . That is,

$$0 \le f(a,t) \le u(a) \qquad \forall a \in A \text{ and } t \in \mathcal{T}.$$
(1)

Moreover, f(a, t) has to be equal to zero for all  $t > T - \tau(a)$  for all  $a \in A$ . The excess flow at vertex  $v \in V$  at time  $t \in \mathcal{T}$ , denoted by  $ex_f(v, t)$ , is defined as

$$0 \le ex_{f}(v,t) := \sum_{a \in \delta^{-(v)}} \sum_{\substack{\xi=0\\t = 0}}^{t-\tau(a)} f(a,\xi) - \sum_{a \in \delta^{+(v)}} \sum_{\substack{\xi=0\\\xi = 0}}^{t} f(a,\xi)$$
(2)

where  $\delta^{-(v)} := \{ a \in A : a = (w, v) \text{ for some vertex } w \in V \}$  and  $\delta^{+(v)} := \{ a \in A : a = (v, w) \text{ for some vertex } w \in V \}$  denote the set of arcs entering and leaving vertex  $v \in V$ , respectively.

Further, we need to ensure that the excess flow at each vertex  $v \in S$  over time horizon T is to be bounded by the capacity (v), i.e.,

$$ex_f(v,T) \le k(v) \text{ for all}$$

$$v \in S.$$
(3)

Consequently, the total flow of evacuees leaving the source *s* equals the total flow of the evacuees held at vertices  $v \in S$  over the time horizon *T*, i.e.,

$$\sum_{a\in\delta^{+(s)}}\sum_{\xi=0}^{T}f(a,\xi) - \sum_{a\in\delta^{-(s)}}\sum_{\xi=0}^{T}f(a,\xi)$$
$$= \sum_{v\in\mathcal{S}}ex_{f}(v,T).$$
(4)

With these settings, *lexicographic earliest arrival contraflow (LexEACF) problem* on N aims to maximize the flow units sent to the terminals on S in given priority order at each time step  $t \in \mathcal{T}$ , if reversal of arc direction is allowed. An arc  $a = (v, w) \in A$  in which the flow could travel from vertex v to vertex w is replaced by the arc (w, v) for contraflow purpose.

#### 3. Solution Discussion

The solution procedure for the lexicographic earliest arrival contraflow problem for a UPL-TTSP network N is discussed here. A directed dynamic network is a uniform path length (UPL) network for which the sum of the transit times on arcs on any possible path from the source s to the vertex v, for all  $v \in V$ , is equal. A two terminal series-parallel network N = (V, A) is a directed network with a single source s and a single sink d which has a single arc (s, d) or is obtained from two series parallel networks  $N_1$  and  $N_2$  by one of the two operations: Parallel Composition and Series Composition. The first suggests to merge source vertices  $s_1$  of  $N_1$  and  $s_2$  of  $N_2$  to form the source vertex s of N and merge sink vertices  $d_1$  of  $N_1$  and  $d_2$  of  $N_2$  to form the sink vertex d of N. The second suggests to merge the sink vertex  $d_1$  of  $N_1$  with the source vertex  $s_2$  of  $N_2$  to form the network N with source vertex  $s_1$  and sink vertex  $d_2$ .

To solve the LexEACF problem, if arcs reversibility is allowed only once at time zero, the input network is modified to its corresponding auxiliary network by the technique given in [18] and a maximum dynamic flow is computed on it by using the technique given in [6]. For the modification of input network  $N = (V, A, u(a), \tau(a), s, d, T)$ , it is transformed into its auxiliary network  $\tilde{N} = (V, \tilde{A}, u(\tilde{a}), \tau(\tilde{a}), k(v), s, d, T)$  where arc set  $\tilde{A}$  contains undirected arc (v, w), if  $(v, w) \in A$  and/or  $(w, v) \in A$  such that capacity u(v, w) := u(v, w) + u(w, v) and transit time  $\tau(v, w) := \tau(v, w)$  if  $(v, w) \in A$ , otherwise,  $\tau(v, w) := \tau(w, v)$ . During the dynamic flow computation, a lexicographic dynamic flow is computed on so-formed auxiliary network  $\tilde{N}$  by using the Lexicographically maximum dynamic flow (LexMDF) algorithm of [7]. The maximum dynamic  $s - v_i$  flow on  $\tilde{N}$  is obtained iteratively by using temporally repeated flows (TRFs) on it. The TRF is a dynamic flow that can be generated by repeating all possible source to sink path flows starting at time zero and then adopting temporal repetition as far as possible.

For a uniform path length (UPL) network  $N = (V, A, u(a), \tau(a), k(v), s, d, T)$ , with prioritized vertices  $v_i \in V$  sorted as  $d = v_1 \ge \cdots \ge v_r$ , the procedure for solving LexMDF problem has following steps: The main idea of the solution procedure of the problem is to find  $s - v_i$  paths, for all  $v_i \in V: k(v_i) > 0$ , at all possible time steps  $t \in T$ with corresponding flow value and send as many units of flow as possible along the paths as long as possible. Such paths can be found by decomposing the flow on solving the *lexicographic minimum cost flow (LexMinCF) problem* on N, see [7]. It gives an extended set  $\Gamma_{v_i}^E$  that contains all minimum cost  $s - v_i$  paths that exist at any time  $t \in T$ on the residual network of N with respect to the optimal flow  $f(v_{i-1})$  at previous immediate prioritized vertex  $v_{i-1}$ . Flow units of corresponding values are pushed along each path as long as possible. Moreover, the flow is pushed along the paths in  $\Gamma_{v_i}^E$  with the strategy of saving unused paths for the use of next less prioritized vertex  $v_{i+1}$  without violating the optimality at  $v_i$ . This is assured by selecting the path with highest  $F_t(\gamma_{v_i})$ , the time step at which the flow along  $\gamma_{v_i}$  stops to get repeated, among the paths  $\gamma_{v_i} \in \Gamma_{v_i}^E$ with highest  $I_t(\gamma_{v_i})$ , the time step at which the flow along  $\gamma_{v_i}$  starts to get repeated, at the first and so on. This procedure yields an optimal solution to the LexMDF problem on UPL network N in polynomial time.

Here the LexMDF algorithm is applied for UPL-TTSP network after reducing it into its auxiliary network that modifies the LexEAF algorithm proposed in [7] and solves the LexEACF problem. The modified procedure is given in Algorithm 1 that solves LexEACF problem when arc reversibility on N is allowed only once at time zero.

#### Algorithm 1. Lexicographic Earliest Arrival Contraflow Algorithm

- 1. Given a UPL-TTSP network  $N = (V, A, u(a), \tau(a), k(v), s, d, T)$ ,  $S := \{v_1, \dots, v_r\} \subset V$  with  $d = v_1 \ge \dots \ge v_r$  and integer inputs.
- 2. Transform *N* into  $\tilde{N} = (V, \tilde{A}, u(\tilde{a}), \tau(\tilde{a}), k(v), s, d, T)$  as in [18].
- 3. Compute LexMDF on  $\tilde{N}$  using Algorithm in [7]
- 4. Perform flow decomposition into path and cycle flows of maximum flow obtained from step-3 and remove all cycle flows.
- 5. Arc  $(w, v) \in A$  is reversed if and only if the flow along arc  $(v, w) \in A$  is greater than u(v, w) or if there is non-negative flow along arc  $\notin A$ .
- 6. Obtain LexEACF solution for UPL-TTSP network *N*.

We make the following claim which turns out to be important in proving the optimality of solution computed by Algorithm 1.

**Claim 1.** UPL-TTSP network N, after transforming into its auxiliary network  $\tilde{N}$ , remains UPL-TTSP network.

**Theorem 1.** Given a UPL-TTSP network  $N = (V, A, u(a), \tau(a), k(v), s, d, T)$ , source *s* and terminal set  $S := \{v_1, ..., v_r\} \subset V$  with  $d = v_1 \ge \cdots \ge v_r$ . Then, Algorithm 1 computes a lexicographic earliest arrival contraflow on *N* in polynomial time.

**Proof:** The construction of auxiliary network  $\tilde{N}$  of input network N is well defined and the transformed network remains a UPL-TTSP network due to Claim 1. The algorithm (Step 3) pushes flow of value  $f(\gamma_{v_i})$  along each path on extended set  $\Gamma_{v_i}^E$  for each possible time step  $t \in \{0, 1, 2, ..., T - \tau(\gamma_{v_i})\}$  from the source vertex s to each of the destination vertex  $v_i \in S$  in given priority order [6]. Therefore, a maximum flow at each  $v_i \in S$  is obtained at the termination of algorithm, [12]. Moreover, the network N being a two terminal series parallel in structure, this flow has an earliest arrival property [19].

The time complexity of Algorithm 1 depends on time complexity of the solution procedure on the reduced network  $\tilde{N}$ . Also, it is dominated by solving a LexMDF

problem on  $\tilde{N}$  since the flow decomposition in each iteration and network transformation can be done only in O(mn) ([1]) and O(m) time, respectively. The LexMDF problem can be solved in strongly polynomial time, [7].

#### 4. Conclusion

Earliest arrival flow problems are of much interest to evacuators because these problems ensure that the number of evacuated persons is maximum at each time point within given time horizon T. Evacuation models with intermediate temporary shelters could be extra benefit while implementing them and contraflow approach seems to be a crucial tool to speed up the overall evacuation process during disasters. This paper proposed a network contraflow evacuation model that allows holding of evacuees at intermediate spots despite sending them to the safe destination. It also proposed polynomial time solution algorithm to the lexicographic earliest arrival contraflow problem for UPL-TTSP network.

Searching of solutions to the problem at which the arc reversibility is permitted at any time point within the specified time horizon would be further research in the field considered here. Problem modeled for multinetwork would also be interesting that captures the situation with multiple lanes connecting two places with unequal transit time on them.

**Acknowledgments:** Second author would like to thank University Grants Commission, Nepal for providing partial financial support as a PhD Fellowship Award-2016 (Award No.: PhD-72/73-S\&T-01) to conduct this research.

#### References

- [1] Ahuja RK, Magnati TL and Orlin JB (1993) *Network flows: theory, algorithms, and applications*, Prentice Hall, New Jersey.
- [2] Baumann N (2007) *Evacuation by earliest arrival flows*, Doctoral thesis, Department of Mathematics, University of Dortmund, Germany.
- [3] Baumann N and Skutella M (2009) Earliest arrival flows with multiple sources, *Mathematics of Operations Research* **34** 499--512.
- [4] Bhandari PP and Khadka SR (2020) Evacuation planning problems with intermediate storage, In *AIJR Proceedings of International Conference on Applied Mathematics & Computational Sciences (ICAMCS-2019), Dehradun*, 90-95.
- [5] Bhandari PP and Khadka SR (2020) Evacuation contraflow problems with not necessarily equal transit time on anti-parallel arcs, *American Journal of Applied Mathematics* **8**(4) 230--235.
- [6] Bhandari PP and Khadka SR (2020) Maximum flow evacuation planning problem with non-conservation flow constraint, *International Annals of Science* **10**(1) 25-32.

- [7] Bhandari PP and Khadka SR (2020) Evacuation planning problems on uniform path length network with prioritized destinations, (Submitted)
- [8] Bhandari PP and Khadka SR (2020) Lexicographically maximum contraflow problems with vertex capacities, (Submitted)
- [9] Bhandari PP, Khadka SR, Ruzika S and Schafer LE (2020) Lexicographically maximum dynamic flow with vertex capacities, *Journal of Mathematics and Statistics* **16**(1) 142--147.
- [10] Dhamala TN and Pyakurel U (2013) Earliest arrival contraflow problem on seriesparallel graphs, *International Journal of Operations Research* **10**(1) 1--13.
- [11] Ford LR and Fulkerson DR (1958) Constructing maximal dynamic flows from static flows, *Operations research* **6**(3) 419--33.
- [12] Ford LR and Fulkerson DR (1962) Flows in networks, Princeton University Press.
- [13] Gale D (1959) Transient flows in networks, *Michigan Mathematical Journal* 6 59-63.
- [14] Hoppe B and Tardos E (1994) Polynomial time algorithms for some evacuation problems, In SODA 94 433--441.
- [15] Khadka SR and Bhandari PP (2017) Dynamic network contraflow evacuation planning problem with continuous time approach, *International Journal of Operations Research* **14**(1) 27-34.
- [16] Khadka SR and Bhandari PP (2019) Model and solution for non-conservation flow evacuation planning problem, *The Nepali Mathematical Sciences Report* **36** 11-16.
- [17] Minieka E (1973) Maximal, lexicographic, and dynamic network flows, *Operations Research* 21(2) 517-527.
- [18] Rebennack S, Arulselvan A, Elefteriadou L and Pardalos PM (2010) Complexity analysis for maximum flow problems with arc reversals, *Journal of Combinatorial Optimization* **19**(2) 200--216.
- [19] Ruzika S, Sperber H and Steiner M (2011) Earliest arrival flows on series--parallel graphs, *Networks* 57(2) 169--173.
- [20] Schmidt M and Skutella M (2014) Earliest arrival flows in networks with multiple sinks, *Discrete Applied Mathematics* **164** 320--327.
- [21] Wilkinson WL (1971) An algorithm for universal maximal dynamic flows in a network, *Operations Research* **19**(7) 1602-1612.

# Antecedent of service innovation effectiveness in small and medium enterprises: a case of hospitality sector in Nepal

#### Gangaram Biswakarma

Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Kathmandu

#### Achyut Gnawali

Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Kathmandu

#### Bharat Khatri

Apex College, Pokhara University, Kathmandu

#### Abstract

For a country's economic growth and the productivity of the market, innovation is an integral factor. Service innovations today are transforming into a huge area for investigating dynamic relationships among technological and human processes that lead to the transition to the organization and management of services. In the hospitality industry, service innovation is very commonly needed. Conventional techniques in the hospitality industry are also very popular and notions prevails that hospitality is hard to innovate. With this the aim of this research is to examine the service innovation practices and its effectiveness in hospitality sector small and medium enterprises of Nepal. A sample of 308 responses has been collected from SMEs in hospitality sector. The findings indicate that the effectiveness of service innovation is limited. The highest correlation is observed with process innovation and followed by service innovation, organisational innovation, marketing innovation and human capital competency. It was found that there is an influence of service innovation, process innovation, marketing innovation, organizational innovation, and human capital competency on effectiveness of service innovation in smes of hospitality sector. SMEs from the hospitality sector could use innovation drivers to meet the ultimate company goals by service innovation effectiveness.

Keywords: Service innovation, innovation, SMEs, hospitality.

#### Introduction

Innovation is an essential element for economic progress of a country and competitiveness of an industry [13]. It plays a crucial role in transforming business dynamics, in developing competitive instruments and in achieving competitive strategy. Innovation is a compelling way to gain value and comparative edge [77]. Innovation plays an important role not only for large firms, but also for SMEs [6, 31]. Initially the idea of service innovation was debated and built over the past few decades. Services dominate the global economy rapidly, with more than 70% of workers in OECD countries and 58% of the global gross domestic product [9]. The hospitality sector is one of the most significant services sectors of modern industry. Globalization and market competitiveness have driven the modern organizations toward innovation in their

operations to gain sustainable competitive advantage [100]. Service innovation is a concept for improving service that is taken into practice [95]. Service innovation involves consumer changes that are seen as unique; or never previously noticed or new to a specific company. New or better methods of planning and delivering systems are service innovation.

As such, service innovation is much sought in the hospitality sector. Innovations in services today are evolving into an enormous field to research complex relations between technical and human processes leading the transition in service organisation and management. Innovations of service delivery systems can be used, but this is mostly used instead as innovation in consumer products. New and substantially modified service models, customer engagement platforms, service distribution mechanisms, lead to a new one or more renewed offerings and improves the marketable service. Customers perceive service in such a way that they can be a key factor in buying decisions. Innovation of service plays an important part in order to best serve customers. In hospitality sector conventional approaches are still prevalent are difficult to innovate in hospitality. With an evolving philosophy of service science that reflects contemporary society, the innovation services are given a strong path in a different way.

In that sense, the conventional method of service delivery of small to medium-sized undertakings is being used aggressively. Service innovation aims to keep the company prosperous and improve staff awareness and competence. Innovation of services allows small to medium-sized companies to deal with giant companies as well.Small and medium-sized businesses must explore opportunities to boost their productivity with restricted capital for innovative ways of operating and rising market shares. Innovation is one of the main philosophies for these competitive circumstances. To do so, people have to adjust the way they decide, try to do it differently and make decisions different from what they did.Organizational leaders must explicitly recognize the aims and purposes of this process and effectively engage in order to meet the objectives of this process in order to ensure that service developments in SMEs are successful. Service innovation is essential for small and medium-sized enterprises in sectors but the methodological research on innovation is relatively inadequate in SMEs in the hospitality sector.

Several scholars have shown that the achievements of SMEs have been significantly influenced by their innovation practices [54, 69]. [48] found that large companies are more innovative than SMEs. Additionally, according to [68] larger firms than SMEs are more adoptive to emerging technology. Researchers like [79, 99] found that product/service innovation activities of SMEs are more important than process innovation.Organizational leaders must explicitly recognize the aims and purposes of this process and effectively engage in order to meet the objectives of this process in order to ensure that service developments in SMEs are successful. Service innovation is essential for small and medium-sized enterprises in sectors but the methodological research on innovation is relatively inadequate in SMEs in the hospitality sector. In hospitality related literature, studies on service innovation, as well as its antecedents, are seriously scant [25].

Researches in innovation are mostly concentrated to manufacturing sector, focused to science and technology and its link to economic productivity, new product development [21]. The study of technical change in the service sector was largely neglected as services were viewed as low technology users [21]. Although innovation of services in the service sector, especially in hospitality, is crucial and evolving in the current situation. The literature on service innovation is expanding into a diverse and multidisciplinary body of knowledge spanning economics, marketing, organizational science and management perspectives [85, 74, and 67].

This study focused and emphasizes to the effectiveness of the service innovation that should be a priority of companies and managers in the development of the organization's smooth operations. Leaders in maintaining competitive companies should learn the connection between the guiding forces of service innovation and its performance. More precisely, recognizing the relation between different main factors most critical for service innovation would provide corporate managers with comprehensive advice on how to create a culture for ingenuity in employees in order to increase skills that increase the chance of success. Thus, the aim of this research is to examine the service innovation practices and its effectiveness in hospitality sector small and medium enterprises of Nepal.

### **Concept of Innovation**

Innovation, in Joseph Schumpeter, a German economist view, who developed the early concept of innovation in economic development and entrepreneurship comprise the elements of creativity, research and development (R&D), new processes, new products or services and advance in technologies [63]. Similarly, [57] innovation is the creation of new wealth or the alteration and enhancement of existing resources to create new wealth. As such [92], innovation is as a process of idea creation, a development of an invention and ultimately the introduction of a new product, process or service to the market. [87] suggests that creativity is one of the most significant strategic arms and is seen as the key value potential of an organization in general. Likewise, [62] considered innovation as an effective way to improve firm's productivity due to the resource constraint issue facing a firm. [8] add that the capability in product and business innovation is crucial for a firm to exploit new opportunities and to gain competitive advantage.

The idea of innovation in the literature is becoming more diverse and complex. It is an innovative method that sets the way for a sequence of subsequent developments in a significant innovation. Especially in the hospitality innovation is a joint action between manufacturers, employers and founders. Innovation can therefore be used in the hospitality industry as a critical driver. Innovation is an innovative method that sets the way for a sequence of subsequent developments in a significant innovation. Hospitality innovation is a joint action between manufacturers, employers and founders. [11, 15, 1, 35, 82], such scholars have established various innovation fostering models. Scholars like [45, 28] presented the critical role of innovation in business profitability and the growth of the organisation.

#### **Emergence of service innovation**

Service innovation research shows three distinct phases, that reflects the era of evolution of service innovation i.e., Formation phase 1986–2000, Maturity phase 2001–2005 and Multidimensional phase 2006–2010. Between 1986 and 2000, the first period of included comparatively fewer publications. Service marketing rapidly grew out of a relatively low level as a sub discipline for marketing research in the 1980s [39]. The first stages of service-innovation study, [39] called into question the existing product-focused vision of innovation that regarded it as more or less synonymous with technological innovation, research and development (R&D), and new product development. In the formation phase, new views of services and service innovation provided foundations for further research [12, 37]. Following an expanded emphasis on innovative product and manufacturing processes [e.g. 96], the phase addressed a latent demand for services applicability. There was also considerable emphasis on the differences between product and process innovation, as drawn from [2]. Throughout the formation process these distinctions led to an increased demarcations perspective along with research the underlies that services have special characteristics [24, 40].

In 2001, marked the start of the second evolutionary phase, or the maturity phase. In this step the key concern was the participation of consumers, which was historically somewhat less discussed and their unintentional positions in the innovation process. The phase consists of the perspective of customer's active participation, involvement in the services process as co-creator of value of the service. The few prominent scholars in this direction were [61, 70, 78, 98, 3, 4, 65, 66, 101]. Studies continued to concentrate on how to learn from consumers and to participate in the field of creativity and innovation more consistently. The era emphasized the non-technological innovation such as [36, 49] and more attention were given that innovation is not only a concern of the technology. A broad range of concepts were integrated such as strategy, leadership, management in service innovation, studies such as [51, 53, and 97].

In 2006 third phase in the evolution, the article of [55] presented service innovation into a multidisciplinary perspective. Likewise, [10] presents the deployment of services perspective. Thereafter, areas like innovation management, technological and non-technological innovation were in the line. [5, 33, 83] studies presented the multidimensional perspective of service innovation. Shifting the concept of service innovation from technological perspective to customer's view point perspective, for example, [83] as well as [41] stressed that progress in technology and non-technology should not be separate but rather represent a view of synthesis.

Likewise, customer involvement, regarding strategy, innovation systems, business model innovation studies like [104, 64, 5, 43 94, 22, 33 84] were put forward in the concept of service innovation.

#### **Process phases of service innovation**

The process of innovation can incorporate both incremental and radical change. To develop an effective innovation process, it is needed to focus not only on products, technology and processes, but also on the culture of the organization, its norms, values and beliefs [46]. [59] points out that the innovation process needs continuous upkeep and renovation so it has much easier losses than acquisition to invent. Likewise, [81] shows that process approaches to change implementation in service innovation. [16, 17] emphasized on incremental innovation produces in the form of continuous improvement. In similar manner, [93] emphasized on organisational structure to support innovation in the organisation. [20] focuses on multiple stakeholders, Rothwell (1992) focuses on understand the needs of the consumers.

The innovation process begins with developing a flourishing ideal environment and then by management procedures capturing and analyzing it which ensure that ideas are effectively transformed into products or services. Innovation diffusion – the method of introducing and incorporating fully-fledged innovations – is the third pillar that drives this entire process.

Innovation is an incorporated process that evolves in three main phases. The creativity phase is where an innovation trip starts [34, 27]. The development of ideas is not a random process and should not be left to chance. This is where a good innovation plays a crucial role by ensuring the transition from an idea to an innovation. The third stage is the diffusion phase; executed diffusion greatly increases the chances of innovation's acceptance.

## **Dimension of service innovation**

Schumpeter is the first investigator to establish invention theory. [88] describes innovation in five dimensions that is initiation of a new product/service or a new type of already known product/service, application of new or significantly improved methods of production, opening a new market, acquiring new sources of supplies, new industry structures such as the destruction of a monopoly position. Likewise, the dimensions of service innovation presented by several studies that are –service/product innovation [75, 50], process innovation [75, 50, 91, 38, 44], marketing innovation [75, 38, 50, 91, 44], organizational innovation [29, 86,38, 50,91, 44], human capital competency [18].

Service feature innovation: Service innovation means introduction of new products or services in order to create new markets or customers, or satisfy current markets or customers [102, 103]. Service is not a type of retail offerings but a value-creation viewpoint. According to [37], the emphasis on value by costuming lens is important and co-creating value along with customers provides the basis for characterizing the service by the collaborative, processual, experiential and relationship. A service innovation often requires reproducible components that in other situations or contexts can be found and systematically replicated. Hospitality companies, like hotels are a perfect example of an industry that might benefit from service innovation. First, from a customer's perspective

[30]; secondly, accelerations in information technology [73], thirdly, brand loyal behavior [73]. In order to add value to the guests' experience, hotel managers and marketers must meet the challenge of determining which services are preferred by hotel guests [73]. In contrast with product innovation research, the study in service innovation research is however low [26].

*Process innovation*: The process innovation is the implementation of a new manufacturing system. It is a method that can also take place economically in a new manner [88]. The direct effect of process innovation on efficiency in SMEs [23], and SMEs can be able to introduce transformation processes more quickly and at a lower cost of transitioning compared with larger companies thanks to their operational simplicity [19]. It covers organizations that manage and manage new products and services for customer design and manufacture. Thus, process innovation involves creating or improving methods of production, service or administrative operations [56] as well as developments in the processes, systems and reengineering activities undertaken to develop new products and services.

*Marketing innovation*: According to [52], marketing innovation deals with the market mix and market selection in order to meet a customer's buying preference. [22] suggests that marketing innovation has a vital role to play in achieving consumer expectations and resolving marketing opportunities. In this respect, any marketing innovation has to be directed at meeting customers' demand and satisfaction [7].

*Organizational innovation*: The new, collaborative/organizational structure/legal system that effectively re-drives or strengthens the company is organisational innovation. It addresses innovative ways to organize internal cooperation, lead and motivate employees, to building careers and to offset salary and benefits employment [76]. Organizational innovations can also be aimed at improving workplace satisfaction and nurturing internal knowledge and competence assets [47, 89]. Organizational innovation covers staff responsibilities, duties and new methods of coordinating and controlling staff [80].

*Human capital competency*: It is a widely held view that human capital represents an essential driver for innovation [18]. The [71] defines human capital as the knowledge, skills, competencies and attributes embodied in individuals that facilitate the creation of personal, social and economic well-being. It is the extensive experience and thought leadership in the area of competency-based management. It offers organisations, through a more creative approach to skills, the capabilities and attributes of their human assets needed for the good exercise of a task.

This research study considered five dimensions for effectiveness of service innovation in hospitality sector, that are - service/product innovation, process innovation, marketing innovation, organizational innovation and human capital competency.

### Methodology

This study focused to the service innovation and its effectiveness in the context of small and medium enterprises in hospitality sector in Nepal. The research applied the descriptive and explanatory research design. The research is descriptive in nature as it describes the present situation of the service innovation in small and medium enterprises of hospitality sector in Nepal. The research applied the descriptive and explanatory research in hospitality sector in the study area. Additionally, the research is explanatory since it has been conducted to identify the extent and nature of cause-and-effect relationships of dimensions of service innovation to the effectives of the service innovation in the context of small and medium enterprises in hospitality sector in Nepal.

The population of interest consisted of SMEs in hospitality sector, which included travel and tourism, hotel and restaurants that is mid-range hospitality business in Kathmandu valley, Pokhara, Chitwan, Butwal, Bhairahwa/Lumbini, and Dharan. First the aforesaid mid-range hospitality businesses were selected and the employees working, managers and owner in these organisations were included in the study. A sample of 450 respondents was selected with convenience sampling of 150 each from hotels, restaurant & café, and travel &tours. However, only 308 responses have been collected - hotels (97 nos.), restaurant &café (107 nos.), and travel &tours (104 nos.). The primary source of data was collected through structured questionnaires. The questionnaire contains 29opinion statements using a five-point Likert scale for each statement ranging from 'Strongly Agree' to 'Strongly disagree', coded by '5' representing 'Strongly Agree' and '1' representing 'Strongly Disagree'. The opinion items were adapted from [75] and [58]. The first part of the questionnaire deals with demographic information of respondents which includes nature of the company, gender, position, experience, education, legal registration, business experience, number of employee, type of the product of the organization where the respondent is associated with. The second part deals with questionnaires related to variables considered in this research. The overall Cronbach's Alpha of 29 numbers of items was 0.955.

#### **Respondents' characteristics**

In the study the majority of organizations surveyed were small enterprises than medium enterprises, small enterprises consists of 81.49% and 18.51% were medium enterprises. There was a participation of 31.49% of hotels, 34.74% of restaurant/café and 33.77% of travel & tours. The legal status of the organisations of the respondents was 43.18% in sole proprietorship, 39.61% in partnership and 17.21% in private limited company. The majority of the organisations were in the business two years 50.97%. There were 62.34% of male and 37.66% of female respondents. Most of the respondents were the owner of the business 44.48%, followed by 31.49% of managers and 24.03% of employee. The respondents have diverse educational level, the majority of them 50.97% were graduates and 31.82% of the respondents were having more than five years of work experience in the field of hospitality.

Nature of Company	n	Percent	Gender	n	Percent
Small	251	81.49%	Male	192	62.34%
Medium	57	18.51%	Female	116	37.66%
Total	308	100.00%	Total	308	100.00%
Type of Organisation	n	Percent	Position	n	Percent
Hotel	97	31.49%	Employee	74	24.03%
Restaurant/Cafe	107	34.74%	Manager	97	31.49%
Travel & Tours	104	33.77%	Owner	137	44.48%
Total	308	100.00%	Total	308	100%
Experience	n	Percent	Education	n	Percent
Six Months	49	15.91%	Below Secondary	17	5.52%
Two Year	95	30.84%	Secondary	47	15.26%
Five Year	66	21.43%	Under Graduate	87	28.25%
More Than Five Year	98	31.82%	Graduate	157	50.97%
Total	308	100.00%	Total	308	100.00%
Legal Registration	n	Percent	Number of Employee	n	Percent
Sole Proprietorship	133	43.18%	1 to 10	82	26.62%
Partnership	122	39.61%	11 to 20	139	45.13%
Private Limited	53	17.21%	21 to 30	87	28.25%
Total	308	100.00%	Total	308	100.00%
Business Experience	n	Percent			
Six Month	12	3.90%			
Two Year	157	50.97%			
Five Year	73	23.70%			
More Than Five Year	66	21.43%	]		
Total	308	100.00%			

#### Table 1: Sample characteristics

#### Results

#### Status of effectiveness of service innovation

Effectiveness of service innovation is the dependent variable of this research. The results show the descriptive statistics of effectiveness of service innovation. There are seven statements used to measure the effectiveness of service innovation in the respondents' organisation. The responses were collected in the five-point Likert scale. The result shows that the items have a mean value ranging from 4.20 to 4.55 i.e. the response were positive in regards of the efforts towards effectiveness of service innovation in SMEs in hospitality sector. Among the seven statements, the statement with code 'ESI2' has scored the lowest mean of 4.20 (SD=0.930) and statement with code 'ESI6' has scored the highest mean of 4.55 (SD=0.571). The highest agreement stated that the service innovation in the organization becomes first priority in business. Wherein, lowest mean shows that respondents are less agreed on the service innovation in their organization helps to increase employee competency. The respondents perceived that the service

innovation in my organization is effective and service innovation in the organization makes our business more competitive. Likewise, respondents perceived moderately that the service innovation is related with the increase employee knowledge, helps to motivate the overall staff or helps to make the strategy of the business. The overall mean of effectiveness of service innovation is 4.32 (SD= 0.495). This shows that the effectiveness of service innovation in SMEs is perceived moderately in practices and it helps to improve the business competitiveness. This shows that the organizations are still to explore the fullest of the service innovation in their respective business that may bring competitive advantage in the arena.

#### Status of service innovation

Service innovation in designing the service is one of the dimension of the overall service innovation. There were four statements used to explore the service innovation in the five-point Likert scale. The result shows that the items have a mean value ranging from 4.20 to 4.37 i.e. the response is moderate in concern to service innovation practice. The result shows that 'SI3' has the highest mean of 4.37 (SD=0.695) and 'SI2' has the lowest mean value of 4.20 (SD=0.930). The most agreed statement stating that organization provides comfortable and user friendly services. The least agreement was for the statement that organization emphasizes on quality of service delivery. It indicates that the organisations are committed to provide the customer centric services, however, they are not so focused to maintain the quality of the service they provided. The overall mean of service innovation is 4.27 (SD= 0.638). This shows that the organisation is moderately focused in service delivery and they are moderately focused to provide innovative service delivery. The organizations are least emphasized to improving the service delivery and they are moderately focused to provide innovative service to increase market share.

#### Status of process innovation

The process innovation dimension was measured with four statements in the five-point Likert scale. The result shows that the items have a mean value ranging from 4.20 to 4.37, shows a moderate agreement of the respondents towards process innovation in their organization. Among the four statements, the statement with code 'PI1' has scored the lowest mean of 4.20 (SD=0.930) and statement with code 'PI2' has scored the highest mean of 4.37 (SD=0.695). The most agreed statement, stating that the organization emphasizes on improving internal operation of business process. Likewise, the least mean shows that respondents are less agreed that their organization focus on improving effectiveness of process innovation. The overall mean of process innovation is 4.26 (SD= 0.568), it shows that a moderate focus of these organisation is towards process innovation. The organisation and communication technology and lesser focused to creating or improving method of production.

#### Status ofmarketing innovation

The dimension of marketing innovation was measured with five statements in the fivepoint Likert scale. The result shows that the items have a mean value ranging from 4.09 to 4.44 i.e. the response indicates a moderate to low marketing innovation practice in the organisation. Among the five statements, the statement with code 'MI3' has scored the lowest mean of 4.09 (SD=0.971) and statement with code 'MI2' has scored the highest mean of 4.44 (SD=0.677). The results indicate that the organization focused on changes in pricing strategy. Most organizations also have good system to meet the current needs of marketing factors. However, respondents are less agreed on their organization focuses on new sales channel. The overall mean of marketing innovation is 4.31 (SD= 0.514), shows that the small and medium enterprises in hospitality sector give importance to marketing innovation moderately. The organizations are lesser focused to the changes in product / service promotion, the organization emphasizes on utilization of social media marketing and emphasizes on seasonal changes in marketing instruments.

#### **Status of organizational Innovation**

The organisational innovation dimension was measured with four statements in the fivepoint Likert scale. The results shows he items have a mean value ranging from 4.23 to 4.32 i.e. the response is with moderate agreement towards organisational innovation. Among the four statements, the statement with code 'OI2' has scored the lowest mean of 4.23 (SD= 0.843) and statement with code 'OI3' and 'OI4' have scored the highest mean of 4.32 (SD= 0.763 and 0.711) respectively. The most agreed statement, stating that organization emphasizes on new way of decision making for division of workandorganization focuses on establishing culture of creativity and innovation. The least agreement was on organization emphasizes on new method of responsibilities. The overall mean of Organizational Innovation is 4.29 (SD=0.554). This shows that the organisations are moderately practicing organisational innovation. The organisations find that the organizational innovation as an important driver for effectiveness of service innovation and trying to focuses on establishing culture of creativity and innovation. The organizations are initiating new method of responsibilities, decision making for division of work and business practices.

#### Status of human capital competency

The human capital competency dimension of service innovation was measured with five statements used in the five-point Likert scale. The result shows that the items have a mean value ranging from 4.19 to 4.33 i.e. show a moderate initiation maintain human capital competency in the organisations. Among the three statements, the statement with code 'HCC3' has scored the lowest mean of 4.19 (SD=0.782) and statement with code 'HCC2' has scored the highest mean of 4.33 (SD=0.713). The most agreed statement, stating that organization emphasizes on new ways of organizing and empowering staff and least agreed by the respondents that the organization is emphasizes on improving work satisfaction. The overall mean of human capital competency is 4.25 (SD=0.508).

This shows that the organizations are moderately emphasizing the dimension of human capital competency in their organisation. The organisations are emphasizing least towards nurturing internal knowledge and competence assets and on promoting the creativity of employee. However, organizations put efforts on retaining staff and maintain flexibility in the workplace. Additionally, organizations are moderately involved on new ways of organizing and empowering staff.

Table 2: 1	Descriptive a	analysis of d	limension s	service inno	vation and	the effectiv	eness of
5	service inno	vation					

Variables	Mean	SD
Service innovation	4.27	0.638
Process innovation	4.26	0.568
Marketing innovation	4.31	0.514
Organizational Innovation	4.29	0.554
Human capital competency	4.25	0.508
Effectiveness of service innovation	4.32	0.495

# Relationship of antecedents of service innovation and the effectiveness of service innovation

Pearson Correlation analysis was used to determine the relationship between the antecedents of service innovation and the effectiveness of service innovation. The result shows that the dimension service innovation and effectiveness of service innovation correlation coefficient as r=0.829, p<0.01, which implies that the two variables are strongly positive correlated. The correlation coefficient of service innovation is statistically significant at 1% significant level. Likewise, process innovation and effectiveness of service innovation correlation coefficient as r=0.842, p<0.01, which implies that the two variables are strongly positive correlated at 1% significant level of significance. Similarly, correlation coefficient between marketing innovation and effectiveness of service innovation is r=0.738, p<0.01, which implies that the two variables have strong positive correlation at 1% significant level of significance. In the similar manner, the correlation coefficient between the organizational innovation and effectiveness of service innovation is 0.784, p<0.01, which implies that the two variables have strong positive correlation at 1% significant level. Similarly, correlation coefficient between the human capital competency and effectiveness of service innovation is r=0.681, p<0.01, which implies that the two variables havemoderate positive correlation at 1% significant level. The highest correlation is observed with process innovation and followed by service innovation, organisational innovation, marketing innovation and human capital competency.

Variables	Service Innovation	Process Innovation	Marketing Innovation	Organization al Innovation	Human Capital Competency
Pearson Correlation	.829**	.842**	.738**	.784**	.681**
Sig. (2-tailed)	.000	.000	.000	.000	.000

 Table 3: Relation between Service Innovation and its Effectiveness

# Impact analysis of antecedents of service innovation on the effectiveness of service innovation

Multiple linear regression analysis was used to analyze the influence of antecedents of service innovation on the effectiveness of service innovation in SMEs in hospitality sector. The impact is expressed in the following equation:

$$\hat{Y} = \alpha + \beta 1 X1 + \beta 2 X2 + \beta 3 X3 + \beta 4 X4 + \beta 5 X5 + ei$$

Where,

Ŷ X1 X2	=	Effectiveness of Service Innovation (dependent variable) Service Innovation Process Innovation
X3	=	Marketing Innovation
X4	=	Organizational Innovation
X5	=	Human Capital Competency
α	=	Constant
β1, β2 β6	=	Regression coefficients of factor 1 to factor 5 respectively
ei	=	Error term

Table 4:	Regression	analysis	output
----------	------------	----------	--------

R	R Square	Adjusted R Square	Std. Error of the Estimate	F	Sig.
.857 <sup>a</sup>	0.817	0.811	0.14733	181.123	$.000^{b}$
Model	Unstan Coefi	dardized ficients	Standardized Coefficients	t	Sig.
	В	Std. Error	Beta		
(Constant)	0.686	0.155		4.416	0
SI	0.318	0.108	0.41	2.955	0.004
PI	0.442	0.079	0.508	5.607	0.001
MI	0.022	0.138	0.023	0.162	0.002
OI	0.097	0.096	0.109	1.017	0.011
HCC	0.065	0.041	0.067	1.603	0.012

Results presented in Table 4.19 show multiple correlation coefficient (R), coefficient of determination (R square), and F-ratio which are used to predict the goodness-of-fit of the regression model. R of independent variables X1, X2, X3, X4, and X5 on the effectiveness of service innovation ( $\hat{Y}$ ) is 0.857, which shows that effectiveness of service innovation has positive correlation with the five independent variables. Further, R square is 0.817, which suggests that 81.7% of the variation of effectiveness of service innovation is explained by the five independent variables. The model is a good predictor of the relationship between the dependent and independent variables F-ratio is 181.123 (p=0.001). As a result, the independent variables (service innovation, process innovation, marketing innovation, organizational innovation, and human capital competency) are significant in explaining the variance in effectiveness of service innovation. The results of regression summarizes the beta coefficients shows that Process Innovation, ( $\beta 2 = 0.442$ , p=0.000) carries the heaviest weight for effectiveness of service innovation, followed by Service Innovation (β1=0.318, p=0.004), Organizational Innovation (β4=0.097, p=0.011), Human Capital Competency ( $\beta$ 5=0.065, p=0.012), and Marketing Innovation ( $\beta$ 3= 0.022, p=0.002).

We can write the estimated equation as follows:

 $\hat{Y} = 0.686 + 0.318 \times X1 + 0.442 \times X2 - 0.022X3 + 0.097 \times X4 + 0.065 \times X5 + ei.$ 

The result shows that process innovation is the significant antecedent while the other independent variables i.e. service innovation, marketing innovation, organizational innovation, human capital competencyare significant.

## Discussion

This study was aimed at analyzing the antecedent of service innovation effectiveness in SMEs of hospitality sector. While service innovation is not a recent phenomenon, innovation research in general appears to concentrate on technical innovation by manufacturing companies [32, 36, and 94]. With this perspective, innovation studies concentrate on commodity (e.g., goods) and method (e.g., manufacturing systems) innovation e.g., [96], generally avoiding service innovation and its intrinsic possibilities. However, in developed economies, the service sector now dominates their gross domestic products, and its share continues to grow [43]. Therefore, both services and service innovation represent central drivers of broader economic growth and innovation [42, 72].

In the hospitality sector SMEs in Nepal, the effectiveness of service innovation is limited. This shows small companies mildly and also calls for market productivity to be strengthened. In service architecture and innovative service provision, SMEs have a moderate emphasis. Organizations are least dependent on better customer delivery and are moderately focused on providing new services in order to maximize market share. SMEs also concentrate on process innovation moderately. Organizations have modest emphasis on ICT and less focus on the development or enhancement of production processes. Similarly, hospitality-based SMEs offer marketing creativity moderate significance. The companies are less concerned about product/service promotion shifts

and stress the use of social media ads and seasonal changes in marketing instruments. Similarly, organizational creativity is mildly practiced by SMEs. The SMEs have a little emphasis on artistic and creativity culture. The organisations are initiating a new system of accountability, decision-making and market separation. SMEs also emphasize fairly the dimension of their organisation's human capital competence. The companies are not focusing on the promotion of internal expertise and skills and on the promotion of employee innovation. But companies make sure to protect their employees and to keep their workplace flexible.

In addition, companies participate moderately in innovative approaches to organize and inspire employees. The SMEs are more focused to marketing innovation than the other innovation practices in SMEs of hospitality sector, followed by organizational innovation, least emphasize is given to human capital competency, service innovation and process innovation. The finding is aligned with the notion of [43], the innovation process can be planned, intentional, or unintentional, such that it emerges through an interactive learning process initiated by any involved parties. Related to the distinction between product and service innovation is a distinction between innovations in manufacturing versus service sectors. Wherein the findings are not supportive in the context of the innovation practice the SMES of hospitality sector in Nepal. As it was emphasized that travel agencies and hotels as a small tourist business require service innovation rather than method innovation, much like the findings of studies carried out in [79,99]. These findings can suggest that organisations that successfully control services innovation aspects add to the efficiency of service innovation. This perspective indicates organizations that effectively manage dimensions of service innovation helps to generate positive outcome in its effectiveness

This study found that positive relationships exist among all the factors of service innovation and effectiveness of service innovation. All the service innovation dimensions of service innovation correlated with effectiveness of service innovation. These findings are consistent with the literature on innovation. Although there are some studies examining innovation [80, 90] and activities of innovation in tourism industry [50] in literature; the empirical studies on innovation issue, especially in tourism industry is very low.

The highest correlation is observed with process innovation and followed by service innovation, organisational innovation, marketing innovation and human capital competency. It signifies that the organisation should focused to process innovation where the organization need to involve in changes in the service process aimed at reducing the costs, wastes and lead time or at improving service efficiency. Organisation need to focus on improving effectiveness of process innovation by focusing on improving internal operation of business process. Thereafter, the organisations need to emphasize towards service innovation in organization emphasizes on continuity in improving of service delivery. Service innovation helps organization to maintain the quality of service delivery. In hospitality sector service innovation provides comfortable and user friendly service. Hospitality sector SMEs need to focus on providing innovative service too increase market share.

Subsequently, organizational innovation needs to be focused as a new, embracing collaborative/organizational structure or legal framework that efficiently redirects or enhances the business in certain fields of hospitality sector. New method of business practices. New method of responsibilities and decision making for division of work need to emphasize by the organization. Organizational innovation focuses organization on establishing culture of creativity and innovation. In line with these, organization need to focus the marketing innovation that deals with the marketing mix and market selection in order to meet a customer's buying preference. SMEs in hospitality sector need to focus on changes in service promotion. It emphasizes SMEs towards the new sales channel in the market. Seasonal changes in marketing innovation. Utilization of social marketing is very crucial for SMEs in hospitality sector. Equally important, human capital competency need to be focused on promoting the creativity of employee and new ways of organizing, directing and empowering staffs. It will help on retaining staff, maintain flexibility and control cost in hospitality sector. The SMEs in hospitality sector need to emphasize in nurturing internal knowledge and competence assets.

The findings of this study indicate that there is an influence of service innovation, process innovation, marketing innovation, organizational innovation, and human capital competency on effectiveness of service innovation in SMEs of hospitality sector. The finding of the study indicates the process innovation carries the heaviest weight for effectiveness of service innovation, followed by service innovation, organizational innovation, human capital competency and marketing innovation. The notion of process innovation comes first in this study differs sole connection with [79, 99], where it was mentioned small tourist business require service innovation rather than method innovation. The study findings imply to organizations that by improving service innovation, process innovation, marketing innovation, organizational innovation, and human capital competency can increase in effectiveness of service innovation. These results provide some insight into the importance of service innovation and its effectiveness in the organization.

The main aim in the current study was to examine whether a relationship exists between service innovation and effectiveness of service innovation, the study also focus on identifying major factors that contributes in effectiveness of service innovation. This study found that positive causal relationships of service innovation dimensions and effectiveness of service innovation in SMEs of hospitality sector. This research work also involved restaurants and café, travel agencies and hotels in Nepal by using innovative measurements perspective. In order to deliver innovative and new creative goods or facilities to our guests in advance, travel agents and hotel, restaurant managers should track innovation efforts in accordance with the findings. Hence, from all the studies conducted from past research concludes that there is a significant impact of service innovation in the organization. The organization having a service innovation gets more benefit in the future. Moreover, it also helps in the smooth functioning of the business through the management of the human capital competency. The dimensions of service innovation positively effects effectiveness of service innovation in SMEs.

#### Conclusion

The larger purpose of this study was to determine if drivers of service innovation has an effect on its effectiveness in the context of SMEs of hospitality sector in Nepal. SMEs of hospitality sector could utilize the drivers of service innovation to achieve the overall business goals through effectiveness of service innovation. This service innovation might bring competitive advantages to all the participants in the new business model. For SMEs of the hospitality industry in Nepal as well as internationally, service excellence can be the vector of economic development and competitive benefit. With the growing development of today's services and economy, the significance of recognizing the principles and practices of service innovation is also rising. It is also possible to fail and excel in service innovation. The outcome can only be said from experience. Nevertheless, no inconvenience or profit can always be sought and sought by hospitality small and medium-sized companies, since it is the path to human development. Therefore, the company should concentrate on service innovation that can change the way the service is provided and delivers convenient and friendly service, in order to introduce an appropriate service innovation.

#### Reference

- [1] Abernathy, W. J., & Clark, K. B. (1985). Innovation: Mapping the winds of creative destruction. *Research policy*, *14*(1), 3-22.
- [2] Abernathy, W. J., & Townsend, P. L. (1975). Technology, productivity and process change. *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*, 7(4), 379-396.
- [3] Abramovici, M., &Bancel-Charensol, L. (2004). How to take customers into consideration in service innovation projects. *The Service Industries Journal*, 24(1), 56-78.
- [4] Alam, I. (2002). An exploratory investigation of user involvement in new service development. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, *30*(3), 250–261.
- [5] Amara, N., Landry, R., &Doloreux, D. (2009). Patterns of innovation in knowledge-intensive business services. *The Service Industries Journal*, 29(4), 407-430.
- [6] Anderson, A., Wahab, K. A., Amin, H., & Chong, R. (2009). Firm Performance: An Analysis from the Theory of Innovation. *Australian Graduate School Entrepreneurship*.
- [7] Appiah-Adu, K., & Singh, S. (1998). Customer orientation and performance: a study of SMEs. *Management decision*, 36(6), 385-94.
- [8] Bakar, L. J. A., & Ahmad, H. (2010). Assessing the relationship between firm resources and product innovation performance. *Business Process Management Journal*.16(3), 420-435.

- [9] Baltacioglu, T., Ada, E., Kaplan, M. D., Yurt And, O., &Cem Kaplan, Y. (2007). A new framework for service supply chains. *The Service Industries Journal*, 27(2), 105-124.
- [10] Barlow, J., Bayer, S., & Curry, R. (2006). Implementing complex innovations in fluid multi-stakeholder environments: experiences of 'telecare'. *Technovation*, 26(3), 396-406.
- [11] Barnett, H. G. (1953). Innovation: the basis of cultural change.
- [12] Barras, R. (1986). Towards a theory of innovation in services. *Research Policy*, 15(4), 161–173.
- [13] Beaver, G. (2002). *Small business, entrepreneurship and enterprise development*. Pearson Education.
- [14] Becker, B., & Gerhart, B. (1996). The impact of human resource management on organizational performance: Progress and prospects. Academy of management journal, 39(4), 779-801.
- [15] Becker, S.W. & Whisler, T.L. (1967), The innovative organization: a selective view of current theory and research. *The Journal of Business*, 40(4), 462-469.
- [16] Bessant, J., & Francis, D. (1999). Developing strategic continuous improvement capability. *International journal of operations & production management*, 19(1)
- [17] Bessant, J., &Caffyn, S. (1997). High-involvement innovation through continuous improvement. *International Journal of Technology Management*, 14(1), 7-28.
- [18] Bonesso, S., Gerli, F., Pizzi, C., &Boyatzis, R. E. (2020). The role of intangible human capital in innovation diversification: linking behavioral competencies with different types of innovation. *Industrial and Corporate Change*, 29(3), 661-681.
- [19] Buckley, J., & Mirza, H. (1997). Introduction in International Technology Transition by SMEs. *UK: Macmillan*.
- [20] Cagliano, R., Blackmon, K., & Voss, C. (2001). Small firms under MICROSCOPE: international differences in production/operations management practices and performance. *Integrated Manufacturing Systems*. 12(7), 469-482.
- [21] Cainelli, G., Evangelista, R., & Savona, M. (2004). The impact of innovation on economic performance in services. *The Service Industries Journal*, 24(1), 116-130.
- [22] Carbonell, P., Rodríguez-Escudero, A. I., & Pujari, D. (2009). Customer involvement in new service development: An examination of antecedents and outcomes. *Journal of product innovation management*, *26*(5), 536-550.
- [23] Castillejo, A., Barrachina, M., Llopis, A., &Samchis, J. (2008). The role of process innovation on SME growth. *Spanish Ministry of Science and Technology*.
- [24] Chan, A.D., Go, F.M., & Pine, R. (1998). Service innovation in Hong Kong: Attitudes and practice. *Service Industries Journal*, *18*(2), 112–124.

- [25] Chen, J.S., Tsou, H.T., & Huang, A.Y.H. (2009). Service delivery innovation antecedents and impact on firm performance. *Journal of Service Research*, 12(1), 36–55.
- [26] Chesbrough, H. (2004). A faling grade for the innovation academy. http://news. ft. com/cms/s/9b743b2a-0e0b-11d9-97d3-00000e2511c8, dwp\_uuid= 6f0b3526-07e3-11d9-9673-00000e2511c8. html.
- [27] Cooper, R. G., & Edgett, S. J. (2002). The dark side of time and time metrics in product innovation. *Visions, XXVI, 22,* 14-16.
- [28] Cosh, A., Hughes, A., & Wood, E. (1996). Innovation in UK SMEs: causes and the consequences for firm failure and acquisition. University of Cambridge.: ESRC Centre for Business Research.
- [29] Damanpour, F. (1991). Organizational innovation: A meta-analysis of effects of determinants and moderators. *Academy of management journal*, *34*(3), 555-590.
- [30] Dan Reid, R., & Sandler, M. (1992). The use of technology to improve service quality: A look at the extent of service improvements to be gained through investments in technology and expanded facilities and programs. *Cornell Hotel and Restaurant Administration Quarterly*, *33*(3), 68-73.
- [31] De Jong, J. P., &Vermeulen, P. A. (2006). Determinants of product innovation in small firms: A comparison across industries. *International small business journal*, 24(6), 587-609.
- [32] De Vries, E. J. (2006). Innovation in services in networks of organizations and in the distribution of services. *Research policy*, *35*(7), 1037-1051.
- [33] Den Hertog, P., Van der Aa, W., & De Jong, M. W. (2010). Capabilities for managing service innovation: towards a conceptual framework. *Journal of service Management.21*(4), 490–514.
- [34] Dinsdale, G., & Moore, M. (2002). *Organizing for Deliberate Innovation, a Toolkit for Teams*. Canadian Centre for Management Development.
- [35] Dosi, G. (2000). *Innovation, organization and economic dynamics: selected essays*. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- [36] Drejer, I. (2004). Identifying innovation in surveys of services: a Schumpeterian perspective. *Research policy*, *33*(3), 551-562.
- [37] Edvardsson, B. (2005). Service quality: beyond cognitive assessment. *Managing Service Quality: An International Journal*, *16*(1), 107-121.
- [38] Fagerberg, J., Mowery, D. C., & Nelson, R. R. (Eds.). (2005). *The Oxford handbook of innovation*. Oxford university press.
- [39] Fisk, R.P., Brown, S.W., &Bitner, M.J. (1993). Tracking the evolution of the services marketing literature. *Journal of Retailing*, 69(Spring), 61–103.

- [40] Frambach, R.T., Barkema, H.G., Nooteboom, B., & Wedel, M. (1998). Adoption of a service innovation in the business market: An empirical test of supply-side variables. *Journal of Business Research*, 41(2), 161–174.
- [41] Gago, D. &Rubalcaba, L. (2007). Innovation and ICT in service firms: towards a multidimensional approach for impact assessment. *Journal of Evolutionary Economics*, 17(1), 25–44.
- [42] Gallouj, F. (2002). *Innovation in the service economy: the new wealth of nations*. Edward Elgar Publishing.
- [43] Gallouj, F., &Windrum, P. (2009). Services and services innovation. *Journal of Evolutionary Economics*, *19*(2), 141–148.
- [44] Gault, F. (2018). Defining and measuring innovation in all sectors of the economy. *Research policy*, 47(3), 617-622.
- [45] Geroski, P., & Machin, S. (1992). Do innovating firms outperform noninnovators?. *Business Strategy Review*, *3*(2), 79-90.
- [46] Gunasekaran, A., Okko, P., Martikainen, T., & Yli-Olli, P. (1996). Improving productivity and quality in small and medium enterprises: cases and analysis. *International Small Business Journal*, *15*(1), 59-72.
- [47] Hall, C. M., & Williams, A. M. (2008). *Tourism and innovation*. London: Routledge
- [48] Harris, M.N., Rogers, M. & Siouclis, A. (2003). Modeling firm innovation using panel probit estimators, *Applied Economics Letters* 10 (11), 683-686.
- [49] Hipp, C., &Grupp, H. (2005). Innovation in the service sector: The demand for service-specific innovation measurement concepts and typologies. *Research Policy*, 34(4), 517–535.
- [50] Hjalager, A. M. (2010). A review of innovation research in tourism. *Tourism* management, 31(1), 1-12.
- [51] Hull, F.M. (2004). Innovation strategy and the impact of a composite model of service product development on performance. *Journal of Service Research*, 7(2), 167–180.
- [52] Johne, A. (1999). Successful market innovation. In *Innovationsmanagement* (pp. 163-170). Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg.
- [53] Johne, A., &Harborne, P. (2003). One leader is not enough for major new service development: Results of a consumer banking study. *Service Industries Journal*, 23(3), 22–39.
- [54] Joyce, P., Seaman, C. & Woods, A. (1994). *The economic growth implications of control and innovation strategies in small businesses*. London Central Training and Enterprise Council.

- [55] Karniouchina, E.V., Victorino, L. & Verma, R. (2006). Product and service innovation: Ideas for future cross-disciplinary research. *Journal of Product Innovation Management*, 23(3), 274–280.
- [56] Khazanchi, S., Lewis, M. W., & Boyer, K. K. (2007). Innovation-supportive culture: The impact of organizational values on process innovation. *Journal of operations management*, 25(4), 871-884.
- [57] Kuratko, D. F. (2016). *Entrepreneurship: Theory, process, and practice*. Nelson Education.
- [58] Lan, Q., & Wu, S. (2010). An empirical study of entrepreneurial orientation and degree of internationalization of small and medium-sized Chinese manufacturing enterprises. *Journal of Chinese Entrepreneurship*, 2(1), 53-75.
- [59] Leonard-Barton, D. (1995). Wellsprings of Knowledge. Harvard Business School Press, Boston, MA.
- [60] Lopes, L. F., & Godinho, M. M. (2005). *Services Innovation and Economic Performance: An analysis at the firm level*. Danish Research Unit for Industrial Dynamics.
- [61] Louro, M.J., & Cunha, P.V. (2001). Brand management paradigms. *Journal of Marketing Management*, 17(7–8), 849–875.
- [62] Lumpkin, G. T., &Dess, G. G. (1996). Clarifying the entrepreneurial orientation construct and linking it to performance. *Academy of management Review*, 21(1), 135-172.
- [63] Lumpkin, G. T., &Dess, G. G. (2001). Linking two dimensions of entrepreneurial orientation to firm performance: The moderating role of environment and industry life cycle. *Journal of business venturing*, *16*(5), 429-451.
- [64] Maglio, P.P., &Spohrer, J. (2008). Fundamentals of service science. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, *36*(1), 18–20.
- [65] Magnusson, P.R., Matthing, J., &Kristensson, P. (2003). Managing user involvment in service innovation: Experiments with innovating end users. *Journal* of Service Research, 6(2), 111–124.
- [66] Matthing, J., Sandén, B., &Edvardsson, B. (2004). New service development: Learning from and with customers. *International Journal of Service Industry Management*, 15(5), 479–498.
- [67] Miles, I. (2005) Innovation in services. In: Fagerberg J, Mowery DC, Nelson RR (eds) The oxford handbook of innovation. Oxford University Press, Oxford, pp 433–458
- [68] Mole, K., & Worrall, L. (2001). Innovation, business performance and regional competitiveness in the West Midlands: evidence from the West Midlands Business Survey. *European Business Review*.13(6), 353-364.

- [69] Moore, S. A., &Weiler, B. (2009). Tourism–protected area partnerships: stoking the fires of innovation. *Journal of Sustainable Tourism*, *17*(2), 129-132.
- [70] Normann, R. (2001). *Reframing Business—When the Map Changes the Landscape*. Chichester, UK: John Wiley & Sons.
- [71] OECD (2001), *The Well-being of Nations: The Role of Human and Social Capital*, Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development, Paris.
- [72] OECD (2005). Privireasupraconceptului de IMM-urișiAntreprenoriat/The concept of SME and entrepreneurship overview, Paris.
- [73] Olsen, M. D., & Connolly, D. J. (2000). Experience-based travel: How technology is changing the hospitality industry. *Cornell Hotel and Restaurant Administration Quarterly*, *41*(1), 30-40.
- [74] Ostrom, A.L., Bitner, M.J., Brown, S.W., Burkhard, K.A., Goul, M., Smith-Daniels, V., Demirkan, H., &Rabinovich, E. (2010). Moving forward and making a difference: Research priorities for the science of service. *Journal of Service Research*, 13(1), 4–36.
- [75] Otero-Neira, C., Lindman, M. T., &Fernández, M. J. (2009). Innovation and performance in SME furniture industries: An international comparative case study. *Marketing Intelligence & Planning*.
- [76] Ottenbacher, M., &Gnoth, J. (2005). How to develop successful hospitality innovation. *Cornell hotel and restaurant administration quarterly*, 46(2), 205-222.
- [77] Pitelis, C. N. (2009). The co-evolution of organizational value capture, value creation and sustainable advantage. *Organization studies*, *30*(10), 1115-1139.
- [78] Prahalad, C. K., & Ramaswamy, V. (2004). Co-creating unique value with customers. *Strategy & Leadership*, *32*(3), 4–9.
- [79] Pratten, C. F. (1991). *The competitiveness of small firms* (pp. 1-261). Cambridge: Cambridge University Press.
- [80] Rademakers, M. (2005), Corporate universities: driving force of knowledge innovation, *The Journal of Workplace Learning*, 17 (1/2), 130-136.
- [81] Raymond, L., & St-Pierre, J. (2010). R&D as a determinant of innovation in manufacturing SMEs: An attempt at empirical clarification. *Technovation*, 30(1), 48-56.
- [82] Rothwell (1992): Successful industrial innovation: critical factors for the 1990s, in: R & D Management, 22 (3), p. 221-239
- [83] Rubalcaba, L., Gago, D., &Gallego, J. (2010). On the differences between goods and services innovation. *Journal of Innovation Economics*, *5*(1), 17–40.
- [84] Rubalcaba, L., Gallego, J., & den Hertog, P. (2010). The case of market and system failures in services innovation. *Service Industries Journal*, *30*(4), 549–566.

- [85] Rubalcaba, L., Michel, S., Sundbo, J., Brown, S. W., & Reynoso, J. (2012). Shaping, organizing, and rethinking service innovation: a multidimensional framework. *Journal of Service Management*. 23(5), 696-715.
- [86] Salavou, H., Baltas, G., &Lioukas, S. (2004). Organisational innovation in SMEs. *European journal of marketing*. 38(9/10), 1091-1112.
- [87] Sandvik, I. L., &Sandvik, K. (2003). The impact of market orientation on product innovativeness and business performance. *International journal of Research in Marketing*, 20(4), 355-376.
- [88] Schumpeter, J. A., & Nichol, A. J. (1934). Robinson's economics of imperfect competition. *Journal of political economy*, 42(2), 249-259.
- [89] Shaw, G., & Williams, A. (2009). Knowledge transfer and management in tourism organisations: An emerging research agenda. *Tourism management*, 30(3), 325-335.
- [90] Sundbo, J. (1997), Management of innovation in services, *The Service Industries Journal*, 17 (3), 432-455.
- [91] Tavassoli, S., &Karlsson, C. (2015). Persistence of various types of innovation analyzed and explained. *Research Policy*, 44(10), 1887-1901.
- [92] Thornhill, S. (2006). Knowledge, innovation and firm performance in high-and low-technology regimes. *Journal of business venturing*, *21*(5), 687-703.
- [93] Tidd, J. and Hull, M.F. (2003). Service Innovation: Organizational Responses to Technological Opportunities and Market Imperatives, Imperial College Press, London
- [94] Toivonen, M., &Tuominen, T. (2009). Emergence of innovations in services. *Service Industries Journal*, 29(7), 887–902.
- [95] Tseng, M. L., Lin, Y. H., Lim, M. K., &Teehankee, B. L. (2015). Using a hybrid method to evaluate service innovation in the hotel industry. Applied Soft Computing, 28, 411-421.
- [96] Utterback, J.M. (1996). Mastering the Dynamics of Innovation (2d ed.). Boston, MA: Harvard Business School Press.
- [97] van Riel, A.C.R., Lemmink, J., &Ouwersloot, H. (2004). High-technology service innovation success: A decision-making perspective. *Journal of Product Innovation Management*, 21(5), 348–359.
- [98] Vargo, S.L., &Lusch, R.F. (2004). Evolving to a new dominant logic for marketing. *Journal of Marketing*, 68(January), 1–17.
- [99] Vaux, J.H., Gomes, M.P.S.F., Grieve, R.J., Ezingeard, J.N., Race, P. & Woolgar, S.W. (1996). SME perception as constraint on accessing university research and expertise. *Proceedings from COST A3 Workshop* (pp. 151-170), Milan.

- [100] Verma, R., &Jayasimha, K. R. (2014). Service delivery innovation architecture: An empirical study of antecedents and outcomes. *IIMB Management Review*, 26(2), 105-121.
- [101] von Hippel, E. (2001). Perspective: User toolkits for innovation. Journal of Product Innovation Management, 18(4), 247–257.
- [102] Wan, D., Ong, C. H., & Lee, F. (2005). Determinants of firm innovation in Singapore. *Technovation*, 25(3), 261-268.
- [103] Wang, C. L., & Ahmed, P. K. (2004). The development and validation of the organisational innovativeness construct using confirmatory factor analysis. *European journal of innovation management*.7(4), 303-313.
- [104] Yang, C.C. (2007). A systems approach to service development in a concurrent engineering environment. *Service Industries Journal*, 27(5), 635–652.

\_\_\_000\_\_\_\_

# Attitudes and purchase intention towards eco-friendly products among Nepalese youth

Santosh Kumar Ghimire

Central Department of Management, Tribhuvan University, Kirtipur. skghimire9@gmail.com

#### Abstract

This research study aimed to examine the green purchase attitudes of Nepalese youths. Due to the rapid technological changes the environment may be affected positively or negatively. This research is conducted to identify factors affecting young Nepalese consumers' intention in purchasing ecofriendly products and targeted on the youths with the age ranging from 18 to 35 years. Therefore, there are two independent variables identified in this research project that could affect youth consumer attitude toward intention to purchase green products. These include the attitudes toward environmental protection and knowledge & awareness of eco-friendly products whereas the other variables such as eco labels, educational level and the experience had been identified as the intervening variables all of which had the major impact on the green purchase intention (GPI). Primary data were collected through the questionnaire in order to inspect the research objectives. In total 115 responses were collected and the reliability test, descriptive analysis, hypothesis test and Pearson correlation analysis are carried out. Consequently, this study carried out to determine the significance of contributing youth attitudes toward intention to purchase green products in Nepalese scenario.

Key words: Green Marketing, Green purchases Intention, Eco friendly products, youths.

#### Introduction

The concept of environmentalism and becoming green was not so prominent before the late 1980s. The green movement first started in Great Britain. British consumers played an initial role of "Greening" movement. Company's contribution to environmental degradation and damage influenced consumers to adopt the greening movement. Thus, eco-friendly marketing concepts spread beyond the Great Britain boundary. Furthermore, some realists raised their voices about sustainable green consumerism that does not harm environment Polonsky [8] Prothero [9].

In Nepal, the market for eco-friendly products is yet to become a mainstream. There is very little academic information available about green consumers in under-developed countries like Nepal, National Geographic [7]. It is within the background of this research gap that the present research will be conducted to assess Nepalese

consumers' pro-environmental concerns, knowledge of environmental issues, awareness of eco-friendly products, and any potential effect that these factors may have on green buying behavior.

Many studies have revealed that consumers who are concerned with the environment and are knowledgeable about the environmental issues, when shopping try to purchase only eco-friendly products, Laroche et al. [6]. Increasing pro- environmental concerns and awareness of eco-friendly products among consumers have resulted in their green buying behaviour. Recent increase in the number of individuals who are willing to pay more for the eco-friendly suggests that the market for eco-friendly products is ever expanding, Laroche et al. [6]. Previous research conducted internationally suggests that the eco-friendly category of consumers is continuing to evolve and that consumers tend to vary in terms of their acceptance of eco-friendly products and lifestyle, Jungermann & Jungermann [5]. Buying eco-friendly products have become trendy among consumers with pro-environmental concerns and awareness of eco-friendly products. Therefore, marketers can now assist organizations in establishing and communicating a strong environmental image, and help to create a clear competitive advantage to their consumers, Bohlen, et al. [3].

Similarly, Alwitt and Berger [2] study found that 70% of consumers show their concern for the environment, but their actions are inconsistent with these attitudes when it comes to consuming products and services. They commented that the likeness of a product depends on attitude with a varying degree of confidence, certainty, accessibility or knowledge. Therefore, many researchers moved to social psychological research in the attitude area to improve a comprehensive theory of consumer behavior Ajzen & Fishbein, [1].

But in overall, consumers who are more aware about environmental protection are more concerned about ecological lifestyles. People want to improve their lifestyles by taking new challenges. They consider that environmental protection is not only the responsibility of firms and institutions, but it is also their responsibility as consumers. People's personalities manipulate what attitudes they have toward the environment, Fraj & Martinez [4].

#### **Objectives of Research**

This study attempts to find out if Nepalese young consumers' pro-environmental concerns, awareness and knowledge about environment related issues impact their buying behavior to prefer and buy eco- friendly products and pay a premium price for such products. This study will portray a tentative scenario where Nepal and Nepalese young consumers stand on environmental consciousness and eco-consumerism. This can help society to make progressive efforts towards green consumerism in future days whatever the research result will be.

The major objectives of this study include:

- a) To assess various individual factors affecting the Green Purchase Intention (GPI) of youths.
- b) To examine if contextual factors i.e. information on eco-labels, consumers' product experience and their education level affect their Green Purchase Intention (GPI).

#### Hypothesis

The hypothesis to be tested are set as follows:

**H1:** People, who have positive attitude towards environmental protection, will have a favorable correlation with Green Purchase Intention (GPI).

**H2:** People, who have knowledge and awareness of eco-friendly products, will have a favorable correlation with Green Purchase Intention (GPI).

**H3:** People, who trust the information conveyed on eco-labels, will have a favorable correlation with Green Purchase Intention (GPI).

**H4:** People, who had positive experience of eco-friendly products in the past, will have a favorable correlation with Green Purchase Intention (GPI).

#### Methodology

Area of Study: The youths currently studying and working within Kathmandu valley.

- Sample size: Out of the youths from Kathmandu, 115 students from different parts of Kathmandu were selected for the response collection.
- Sample technique: This was a descriptive research study based on convenience sampling technique.
- **Sources of data:** Primary as well as secondary data sources were used in the research. Questionnaire was the main instrument for collecting primary data. All together 125 questionnaires were distributed but only 115 were collected hence got the 92% response rate. The secondary sources for data collection were mostly an internet for literature survey and books and journals to get some relevant information regarding the topic.

The overall research study was based on the questionnaire with the following scales and categories:

- Scales of response: 1= Strongly Disagree; 2= Disagree; 3= Neutral; 4= Agree; 5= Strongly Agree
- **Categories of Questionnaire:** Category 1: Pro-environmental concern; Category 2: Knowledge & Awareness; Category 3: Eco labels; Category 4: Consumer Experience; Category 5: Willingness to pay more; Category 6: Green Purchase Intention
- **Validity and reliability:** For the validity of the questionnaire, a pilot test was conducted with the help of random 10 youths through personal contact. On the basis of their recommendation, the required changes in the questionnaire had been made. The reliability of the category wise questionnaire was checked through Cronbach's alpha which was found to be in the range of 0.725 to 0.876; which is greater than the stated value i.e.0.7; hence the reliability of the questionnaire verified.

#### **Conceptual Framework**



#### **Respondents' Profile**

This section deals with the demographic analysis and interpretation of primary data collected through questionnaires. This helps to get insight into the demographic characteristics of the respondents under study. The respondent profile includes gender, qualification, occupation, age-group and income level.

	Demographics	Frequency	Percentage
	Male	69	60%
Gender	Female	46	40%
	Total	115	100%
	18-23 years	10	9%
<b>A</b> (20)	24-29 years	65	57%
Age	30-35 years	41	36%
	Total	115	100%
	Bachelors	45	39%
Education	Masters	70	61%
	Total	115	100%
	Students	72	63%
Occupation	Professionals	43	37%
	Total	115	100%
	Below Rs. 15000	16	14%
	Rs. 15000 - Rs.25000	43	37%
Monthly Income lovel	Rs. 25000 – Rs. 35000	32	28%
wonting income level	Above Rs. 35000	17	15%
	Not Earning	7	6%
	Total	115	100%

#### Demographic description of the respondents

Source: Field Survey, 2019

## **Demographic Analysis**

Table describes the demographic details of the respondents which consists of 60% male and 40% female with the age group classification of 18-23 years, 24-29 years and 30-35 years by 9%, 57% and 36% respectively. Out of the total respondents 39% and 61% of the students had bachelors and masters degrees respectively. Most of the respondents were students covering 63% and the professionals covering 37% out of total. Among the respondents 37% were getting monthly income of Rs. 15000 to Rs. 25000. Out of them 14% of respondents were earning below Rs. 15000 and 6% of the respondents were not earning any amount.

#### **Descriptive Statistics of the questionnaire**

Category	Statements	Mean	Rank	Average
	I would describe myself as environmentally responsible.	3.62	3	
	I am worried about the worsening of the quality of Nepalese ecological environment. When I purchase products, I try to make efforts to buy products that are low in pollutants.		1	
Attitude			4	3.51
	I am interested in asking about the environmental consequences of a product before buying it.	2.98	5	
	To be honest, I feel that environmental problems affect my personal (every day) life.	3.82	2	

Category	Statements	Mean	Rank	Average	
	I am aware about following eco-friendly products: a) Biodegradable	3.89	1		
Knowledge	b) Recyclable	3.69	2	2 70	
A woronoss	c) Organic	3.89	1	5.19	
Awareness	d) Energy efficient	3.67	3		
	I am aware that purchasing eco-friendly products will contribute to the sustainable ecological future.	3.87	-		
Eco Labels	When I want to buy a product, I look at the eco-labels to see if it contains things that are eco-friendly.	3.04	3		
of purchase	If the product is eco-labelled, this information changes my choice of purchase.	3.52	1 3.33		
	I trust the information of eco-labels on eco-friendly products.	3.43	2		
	I trust the quality of eco-friendly product	3.43	4		
Product	Based on the brand/product image, I strongly feel about buying eco-friendly product.	3.87	1		
Experience	I would recommend the eco-friendly products to other if it has performed well as promised in the past.	3.73	3.72		
	I intend to purchase eco-friendly products in the future as well.	3.83	2		
Willingness to pay more	I agree that the price of eco-friendly products is supposed to be higher.	3.61	1	3.41	
1.2	I am willing to pay more for eco-friendly products.	3.20	3.20 2		
	Whenever I have thought of buying some products, I first asked for eco-friendly products if available.	2.71	4		
Green	I have purchased light bulbs that were more expensive but saved energy.	3.71	1	1	
Purchase	I make energy effort to reduce the use of plastic bags.	3.68	2	3.18	
Intention	I have always purchased spray (deodorant, perfumes, hair spray, room fresheners, etc.) that are ozone free.	2.67	5		
	I have convinced members of my family or friends to buy organic foods which are least harmful to the environment.	3.13	3		

Source: Field Survey, 2019

#### **Result Analysis**

#### a) Attitude toward environmental protection

In Table 3.2, Q1.1, Q1.2, Q1.3 and Q1.5 scored mean value above 3 (mid-range value) which also implies that respondents agreed on the respective issues regarding attitude towards environmental protection. Among the set of questions of this independent variable, Q1.2 was the most prioritized issue which scored the highest mean value i.e. 3.89 indicating that people were worried about the quality of Nepalese ecological environment. On the other hand, Q1.4 with a mean value of 2.98 showed that people were least interested in asking about the environmental consequences of a product before buying it. However, the aggregate mean value of the attitude towards environmental protection (independent variable) is 3.51 implying that the overall attitude of the respondents regarding environmental protection was positive which indicates that respondents were environmentally responsible and also thought that environmental problems affect their everyday life.

#### b) Knowledge and awareness of eco-friendly products

Table 3.2 shows the overall knowledge and awareness of eco-friendly products. All the questions in category 2 scored value above 3 (mid-range value) which also implies that respondents agreed on the respective issues regarding knowledge and awareness of eco-friendly products. Among the set of questions of this independent variable, Q2.1 scored the highest value i.e. 3.89 indicating increased individual awareness on purchasing eco- friendly products which will contribute to the sustainable ecological future. Similarly, this part of questionnaire also revealed that people were aware of eco-friendly products namely: a) Biodegradable, b) Recyclable, c) Organic, and d) Energy efficient; the mean score of all questions being above 3. In comparison to all other eco-friendly products, people were least aware of organic products followed by biodegradable products, which scored 3.67 and 3.69 respectively on mean score. However, the aggregate mean value of the knowledge and awareness of eco-friendly products (independent variable) is 3.79 implying that the overall knowledge and awareness level of the respondents on eco-friendly products is high.

#### c) Eco labels as a choice of purchase

Table 3.2, third section shows the overall concern of respondents on eco-labels of eco-friendly products. In this analysis all the responses scored value above 3 (mid-range value) which also implies that respondents were concerned regarding information of eco-labels on eco-friendly products. Among the set of questions of this intervening variable, Q3.2 scored the highest value i.e. 3.52 indicating that if the products were labelled as eco-friendly, this information will change their choice of purchase. On the other hand, Q3.1 with a mean value of 3.04 showed that people were comparatively less concerned in looking at the information to see if it contains things that are eco-friendly while purchasing products. The aggregate mean value of respondents' concern regarding eco-labels (independent variable) is 3.33 implying that the overall concern of the respondents for information conveyed on eco-labels was positive. In other words, it also indicates that respondents trusted the information provided on eco-friendly products.

#### d) Product experience

In Table 3.2 forth section, e very questions scored value above 3 (mid-range value) which also implies that respondents showed positive behavior regarding eco-friendly products if the product experience in the past has been convincing. Among the set of questions of this intervening variable, Q4.2 scored the highest value i.e. 3.87 indicating that people would recommend the eco-friendly products to other if it has performed well as promised in the past. Similarly, Q4.1 and Q4.3 also showed a similar conclusion regarding their trust on the eco-friendly products and their purchase behavior in future as well.

The aggregate mean value of respondents' experience of eco-friendly products is 3.72 implying that respondents had positive experience on eco-friendly products. In other words, it also indicates that respondents trust the quality of eco-friendly products and are intended to purchase them in future as well.

#### e) Willingness to pay more

Table 3.2 fifth section shows the willingness of respondents to pay more for the eco-friendly products. Both the questions i.e. Q5.1 and Q5.2scored value above 3 (mid-range value) which also implies that overall willingness to pay more for the eco-friendly products was positive. Among the set of questions, Q5.1 scored the highest value i.e. 3.61 indicating that people agreed on the fact that the price of eco-friendly products is supposed to be higher. But at the same time, when the same people were asked whether they were willing to pay more for the products, their response was not as positive as in the first case. The mean score of Q5.2 is 3.20 which is lower than that of Q5.1 i.e. 3.61. The aggregate mean value of respondents' willingness to pay for the eco- friendly products is 3.41 implying that people were willing to pay more for the price of such products is supposed to be higher, which is a good sign for the marketers, who are doing business on such eco-friendly products.

#### f) Green Purchase Intention

Table 3.2 sixth section shows the overall intention of respondents towards purchasing eco-friendly products. In that section Q6.2, Q6.3 and Q6.5 scored value above 3 (mid-range value) which also implies that respondents agreed on the respective issues regarding green purchase intention. Among the set of questions of the dependent variable, Q6.2 scored the highest value i.e. 3.71 indicating that people had favorable attitude towards purchasing energy saving appliances. Similar were the responses on recyclable and organic products with respective mean scores of 3.68 and 3.13 respectively. On the other hand, people did not have favorable attitude towards ozone free sprays which is shown by the lowest mean score of 2.67. More interestingly, eco-friendly products were not the first choice of the people while showing purchase behavior. In other words, whenever they had thought of buying some products, they hardly asked for ecofriendly products if it is available. The aggregate mean value of green purchase intention (dependent variable) is 3.18 implying that the overall intention of people in purchasing green products was positive. Especially, people were aware and tend to purchase recyclable, energy efficient and organic products

### **Hypotheses Testing**



For the purpose of testing stated hypothesis, the correlation analysis and p-value tests were used with the help of SPSS software.

Convolution Analysis

#### **Correlation Analysis**

Correlation Analysis						
		Attitude Towards Environmental Protection	Knowledge & Awareness	Eco Labels	Product Experience	
Green Purchase Intention (GPI)	Pearson Correlation	0.715**	0.631**	0.674**	0.622**	
	Sig. (2 tailed) = 0.000					
	N = 115					

\*\*. Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed).

Table shows the correlation analysis between dependent variable Green Purchase Intention (GPI) and other independent/intervening variables i.e. attitude towards environmental protection Knowledge & awareness, Eco labels and Product experience. Since the p value is less than alpha i.e.  $p(0.000) < \alpha(0.01)$ , the correlations are significant between GPI and other mentioned variables. There was positive relationship between GPI and all other variables individually. Hence, HYPOTHESIS 1 (H1) – people, who have positive attitude towards environmental protection, will have a favourable correlation with Green Purchase Intention (GPI) – is accepted.

Further, with the correlation coefficient value of 0.631, it can be said that there was positive relationship between knowledge and awareness of eco-friendly products and green purchase intention. That showed that people who had knowledge and awareness of eco-friendly products had a favorable Green Purchase Intention (GPI). Hence,

HYPOTHESIS 2 (H2) – people, who have knowledge and awareness of eco-friendly products, will have a favourable correlation with Green Purchase Intention (GPI) – is accepted.

Again, with the correlation coefficient value of 0.674, it can be said that there was positive relationship between information conveyed on eco-labels and green purchase intention. In other words, people who trusted the information conveyed on eco-labels had a favorable Green Purchase Intention (GPI). Hence, HYPOTHESIS 3 (H3) – people, who trust the information conveyed on eco-labels, will have a favorable correlation with Green Purchase Intention (GPI) – is accepted.

Now, with the correlation coefficient value of 0.622, it can be said that there was positive relationship in between product experience and green purchase intention. In other words, people who had positive experience of eco-friendly products in the past had a favorable Green Purchase Intention (GPI). Hence, HYPOTHESIS 4 (H4) – people, who had positive experience of eco-friendly products in the past, will have a favorable correlation with Green Purchase Intention (GPI) – is accepted.

### Discussion

The history of green marketing as a marketing strategy is not so long. In this study, it can be seen that eco labels, product experience and willingness to pay more acted as potential background factors for young consumers' attitude, knowledge and awareness formation. So, marketers should deliver positive and emotional appeals to educate young consumers' product preferences. Accordingly, marketers can take initiatives to increase knowledge building activities like eco-workshops in colleges and organizations, field trips, and tree plantation. Furthermore, from the empirical findings, it can be seen that there has been a rise in intention to buy eco-friendly products, especially in the 24-29 age-group. Thus, national and international green marketers should target this segment (24-29 age-groups) with knowledge building activities. In this study, the researcher has found that these two are strong predictors of buying eco-friendly products. So, this has led to increasing necessity and importance in the side of marketer to educate people more about such products and has also pressurized them to meet and maintain the required and expected quality level of such products.

#### **References:**

- [1] Ajzen, I., & Fishbein, M. (2000). Attitudes and the attitude-behavior relation: Reasoned and automatic processes. *European Review of Social Psychology*, 11(1), 1-33.
- [2] Alwitt, L. F., & Berger, I. E. (1993). Understanding the link between environmental attitudes and consumer product usage. *Advances in Consumer Research*, 20(1), 189-194.

- [3] Bohlen, G., Schlegelmilch, B. B., & Diamantopoulos, A. (1993). Measuring Ecological Concern: A Multi-construct Perspective. *Journal of Marketing Management*, 12(3), 415-430.
- [4] Fraj. E & Martinez, E. (2006). "Environmental Value and Lifestyle as Determining Factors of Ecological Consumer Behavior: An Empirical Analysis". Journal of Consumer Marketing, Vol. 23, Issue 3, 133-144.
- [5] Jungermann, W. C., & Jungermann, C. E. (2010). Sustainability Marketing: A Global Perspective. *The Journal of Environmental Education*, *39*(1), 10-19.
- [6] Laroche, M. et al. (2002). Cultural Differences in Environmental Knowledge, Attitudes, and Behaviors of Canadian Consumers. *Canadian Journal of Administrative Sciences*, 267-283.
- [7] National Geographic. (2010). Consumer Choice and the environment- A worldwide tracking survey. *Greendex 2010*, *3*(1), 1-13.
- [8] Polonsky, M. J., & Rosenberger III, P. J. (2001, September-October). Reevaluating Green Marketing: A Strategic Approach. Business Horizons, 44(5), 21-30.
- [9] Prothero, A. (1990). Green Consumerism & the Societal Marketing Concept Marketing strategies for the 1990s. Journal of Marketing Management, 6(2), 87-103.

\_\_\_\_000\_\_\_\_\_

# **INSTRUCTIONS TO AUTHORS**

# All manuscript must be prepared in letter quality (font size 12) in double-space of A4 paper with margins of one inch on all side using the Times New Roman.

#### 1. Cover Page

Manuscript of a paper should have a cover page providing the title of the paper, the name(s), address(es), phone, fax numbers and email address(es) of all authors and acknowledgements, if any.

#### 2. General Guidelines for Papers

*Abstract:* Following the cover page, there should be an 'abstract' page, which should contain the title of the paper, the subtitle 'Abstract' and a summary of the paper in single space not exceeding 150 words and Keywords of 3 to 5 words.

*Introduction:* Briefly describe the objective of the research and explain why it is important.

*Methods:* Describe the research plan, the materials (or subjects), and the method used. Explain in detail the Data, sample and population, and the variables used.

*Results:* Present results in a clear, logical sequence. If tables are used, do not duplicate tabular data in text, but do describe important trends and points.

*Discussion:* Describe the limitations of the research plan, material (or subject), and methods, considering both the objective and the outcome of the study. When results differ from those of previous researchers, explain the discrepancy.

*Figures and Tables:* Each Figure/Table should be printed on a separate sheet, Figures and Tables are to be separately numbered, titled and attached at the end of the text serially. The position of the figure or table should be indicated in the text on a separate line with the words "Table I about here".

**References:** Indicate references by number(s) in square brackets in line with the text. The actual authors can be referred to, but the reference number(s) must always be given. Use italic font for the journals and the proceedings in which the paper has been published. Mark italic font on the title of the paper otherwise (for example, book and dissertations).

Example: "...Ahuja et al. [1]. ..... studied [2, 4]. Areibi and Yang [2] obtained .....

*List:* Number the references (numbers in square brackets) in the list in the alphabetical order of the first author.

#### **Examples (Reference to a journal publication):**

- [1] Ahuja, R.K., Magnati, T.L. and Orlin, J.B., 1993, Network flows: theory, algorithms and applications, Prentice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey.
- [2] Areibi, S. and Yang, Z., 2004, Effective memetic algorithms for VLSI design = Genetic algorithms + Local search + Multi-level clustering, Evolutionary Computation, 12, 327-353.
- [3] Baumann, N., 2007, Evacuation by earliest arrival flows, PhD thesis, Department of Mathematics, University of Dortmund, Germany.
- [4] Borah, M., Owens, R.M. and Irwin, M.J., 1995, Transistor sizing for minimizing power consumption of CMOS circuits under delay constraint, International Symposium on Low Power Design, 167-172.



# International Journal of Operational Research/Nepal (IJORN)

# I. Advisory Board

#### Professor Dr. Pushkar Man Bajracharya

Central Department of Management, Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *pushkarb2000@gmail.com* 

#### Dr. Elise de Rosario

Executive Director, Operations Research Society of Philippines *elise@jgdelrosario.com* 

#### **Professor Dr. Frank Werner**

Institute of Optimization, Faculty of Mathematics, Otto-von-Guericke University, Megdeburg, Germany frank.werner@ovgu.de

#### Professor Dr. Baikuntha Nath

University of Melbourne, Australia baikunth@unimelb.edu.au

Professor Dr. K K Lai

Management Science, City University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong mskklai@cityu.edu.hk

#### Professor Dr. Shashi Shekhar

Department of Computer Science College of Science and Engineering, University of Minnesota, USA shekhar@cs.umn.edu

#### Professor Dr. James J. Cochran

Bank of Ruston, Barnes, Thompson, & Thurman Endowed Research Professor Department of Marketing and Analysis College of Business, Louisiana Tech University Ruston, LA 71272 *jcochran@latech.edu* 

#### Professor Dr. Subhash Datta

Director CIGSD Gurgaon, Haryana, India (Gurgaon, India) subhash.datta@gmail.com

#### II. Editorial Board

#### Prof. Dr. Shankar Prasad Khanal

Editor-in-Chief Central Department of Statistics, Institute of Science and Technology, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *drshankarcds@gmail.com* 

#### Professor Dr. Sunity Shrestha Hada

Central Department of Management, Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Nepal sunity.shresthahada7@gmail.com

#### Professor Dr. Tanka Nath Dhamala

Central Department of Mathematics, Institute of Science and Technology, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *dhamala@yahoo.com* 

**Professor Dr. Hans Kellerer** Institute of Statistics and Operations Research, University of Graz, Austria hans.kellerer@uni-graz.at

#### Professor Dr. Yuri N. Sotskov

United Institute of Informatics Problems NAS of Belarus 6, Surganova Str. 220012 Minsk, Belarus sotskov@newman.bas-net.by; sotskov2005@hotmail.com

#### Professor Dr. Luiz Flavio Autran Monteiro Gomes

Head of Research, Ibmec/RJ, Brazil *autran@ibmecrj.br* 

#### **Professor Matthias Ehrgott**

Management Science Lanchaster University, UK m.ehrgott@lancaster.ac.uk

#### Dr. Shree Ram Khadka

Associate Editor Central Department of Mathematics, Institute of Science and Technology, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *shreeramkhadka@gmail.com* 

## **III. Managing Board**

**Professor Dr. Sunity Shrestha Hada** Director Central Department of Management, Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *sunity.shresthahada7@gmail.com* 

#### Professor Pushkar Kumar Sharma

Nepal Commerce Campus, Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *pushkar-s@hotmail.com* 

#### Dr. Govinda Tamang

Central Department of Management, Faculty of Management, Tribhuvan University, Nepal tamang\_govinda@yahoo.com

#### Mr. Krishna Nakarmi

Agricultural Development Bank, Kathmandu, Nepal nakarmikrishna@gmail.com

#### Dr. Shree Ram Khadka

Central Department of Mathematics, Institute of Science and Technology, Tribhuvan University, Nepal *shreeramkhadka@gmail.com* 

#### Mr. Raju Manandhar

Research Centre for Educational Innovation and Development (CERID), Tribhuvan University, Nepal *rajumanandhar@yahoo.com* 

# Subscription Rate:

For ORSN Members:	NRs. 2	250.00
For SAARC Countries:	US\$	10.00
Other Countries:	US\$	20.00